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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

BUREA U OFELDERL Y & ADULTSER VICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3587
603-271-9203 1-800-351-1888

Fax:603-271-4643 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

September 10, 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports and
Services, Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services, to retroactively exercise a renewal option and amend an
existing sole source agreement with Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties.
Inc., (Vendor #177203), 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, NH 03302, to continue to provide Senior
Companion Services, by increasing the price limitation by $60,000 from $60,000 to $120,000, and
extending the completion date from September 30, 2018 to September 30, 2020, effective upon the
date of Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original agreement was approved by Governor and Executive Council on October 26, 2016
(Item #16).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2019, and are expected
to be available in SFY 2020 and SFY 2021, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds
with the authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further approval from Govemor and Executive Council.

05-95-48-481010-9010 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
/Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs $22,500.00 $0.00 $22,500.00

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs $7,500.00 $22,500.00 $30,000.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs $0.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs $0.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00

$60,000.00 $60,000.00 $120,000.00
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EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive due to the fully executed contract documentation were not received
with enough time to meet the September 19, 2018 Governor and Executive Council meeting.

The request is sole source as Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties,
Inc., is the only sponsor and fiscal agent for the Senior Companion Program in New Hampshire,
primarily funded and regulated by the Federal Corporation for National and Community Services to
provide this program. The Corporation for National and Community Service has selected the
Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties. Inc., as the sole agency in New
Hampshire "to sponsor the Senior Volunteer Grant Program, per RSA 161-F:40, within the limits of
funds appropriated, to reimburse for covered expenses incurred by the Senior Companion Program.

The purpose of this amendment is to continue providing Senior Companion services by
extending contracted services for two (2) years. The mission of the Senior Companion Program is to
prevent institutionalization and to promote independence for vulnerable older individuals by supporting
older adults in maintaining independent cornmunity living.

The Senior Companion Program provides the opportunity for low-income (200% of poverty or
less) adults over the age of fifty-five (55) to serve as companions. Companions are matched with older
adults who are homebound and provide supportive services. The companions benefit from participation
in a rewarding and worthwhile experience and the older individuals who are served, benefit from regular
companionship and reduced isolation.

The Contractor shall maintain compliance with for Senior Companion Program as established
by the National Senior Corporation for National Community Services. The contractor shall report to the
Bureau on a quarterly basis;

•  The number of visits made;

•  The number of Clients served;

•  The number of Companions participating in the program; and

•  The number of hours Companions spent with clients

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this agreement has the option to extend for up to
two (2) additional years subject to continued availability of funds and satisfactory performance of
services. The Department is satisfied with services provided by the Contractor and is in agreement with
continuation of the contracted services.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department will
lack the resources to maintain federal designation or receive continued funding and seniors will be
without companionship support and be at risk for increased isolation. This will also impact individuals
who need long-term care, from being able maintain their independence in the community resulting in
increased utilization of higher cost institutional services.



\

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page3.of3

Area served: Belknap, Grafton, Hillsborough, Merrimack, Rockingham, Strafford and Sullivan
Counties

Source of Funds: 05-95-48-481010-9010 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS.
VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES (0% FEDERAL, 100% GENERAL).

Respectfully submitted,

ChrjMine L. Sa
Di/ector

el

Approved by: ̂ ,
^.Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Companion Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the

Senior Companion Program Contract

This 1*^ Amendment to the Senior Companion Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") dated
this 25'" day of July, 2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Community Action Program Belknap and
Merrimack Counties, Inc.(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a corporation with a place of business at 2
Industrial Park Drive, Concord. NH 03302-1016.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
October 26, 2016, (Item # 16), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the payment schedules and terms and
conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions, Paragraph 3, the State may amend the contract and may renew contract services for up to two (2)
years;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to support
continued delivery of these services upon written agreement of both parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained in the
Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions; Block 1.7, Completion Date to read: September 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation to read: $120,000

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency to read: E. Maria
Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10 State Agency Phone Number to read: 603-271-9330.

5. Delete Exhibit B-3 and replace with Exhibit B-3, Amendment 1

6. Add Exhibit B-4

7. Add Exhibit B-5

8. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements

Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack
Counties. Inc. Amendment #1
SS-2017-BEAS-01-SENIO Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Companion Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Name'; CJ\j\\

oh/T,

CONTRACTOR NAME
Community Action Pr

8/29/2018

Date

QJM
Jeanne Agri

Executive Director

Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
b

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of New Hampshire . County of Merrimack
personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

on 8/29/2018 before the undersigned officer,

Signature'ofNotary Public or Justice^the Peace

Kathy L. Howard, Notary Public
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

KA^L. HOWAKPYiOMy PBiiljB, Nmt Hnpdiira
Cbc8Di«M.EipM 0|;9^''16. ms

Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack
Counties, Inc. Amendment#!
SS-2017-BEAS-01-SEN10 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Companion Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

1
Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Gove^^
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

he Go\)(

Title:

and Executive Council of the State

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack
Counties, Inc. Amendment #1
SS-2017-BEAS^31-SENIO Page 3 of 3
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Budget

New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUOiSET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BidderiPrognm Nam: Comnuntty Action Program BollBiip Wanimcfc Couiitloa, Inc.

Budget RoquMt for Senior Companion Program

Budget Period: Jtdy1, Mil through June SO. 201*

Fimded by DHHS contract tha^
Urie Item

_y^otal_Program_Co«^
bidlrect

r'Contractor.Share./ Match'

Indirect

1. Total SalafyWaaea 12.750.00 12.750.00 12,750.00

2. Emolovee Benefits 1.600.00 1,800.00

3. Consiitants

Equipment

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purehaae/Depredation

S. Suppliea:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

7. Occupancy 8,500.00 8.500.00

8. Current E«>eoaea

Telephone

Pottage

_Subt2l^on^
Audit arxl Legal

Inturance

Board Eaoenaee

9. Software

10. MarltetinQ/ComfnunicatiOtta

11. Staff Education and Trainiixi

12. Subconlracta/Agreementa

13. Other (w>edflcdetaUa(tiar»detcrv):

Volunteer Travel 6.000.00 6.000.00

30,000.00 30,000.001 ̂ 30.000.00 30,000.00 I

Indirect As A Parcanl of Olract 0.0%

Community Action Program Belknap-Menimadc Countiaa. Inc.

SS-2017-eEAS-01-SEN10

E;diibit 8-3, Amendment 1

Page 1 of 1

Contractor't Initial!
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Btfdg«t

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPtfTE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BIddMrPrognm N«nw: Commwiity Action Program Botknap-Monimack Countlaa, Inc.

Budget Raquaat for Sonior Companion Prognm
(NariM crarp)

BudgatPeriod: Jidyl. ZOiettmughJiM SO, 2020

Funded by PHHS contract atiare

Line Item'

_^ottl_Pro£ram_Co«F
Total

Contractor Share I Match

Indirect

1 ■ Total Salarv/Waqea 12,750.00 12.750,00

2. Emplovee BeneCta 1,800.00 1,800.00

3. Conaultanta

Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purcnaae/Depredation

5. Suppliea:

Pharmacy

Office

8. Tr«^ 100.00

7. Ocajpaney 8.500.00

8. Currerrt Ejpenaea

Telephotte

Poetaoe
_Subscri£don^
Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board E>pertses

9, SoltMare

10. Marketing/Commutiicaiiorts

11. Staff Education and TrainirtQ

12. Subcontracta/Aareements

13. Other (apecMc detaile martdatcry):

Volunteer Travel 6.000.00 6.000.00

30,000.00! 30,000.001 30,000.00 0.000.00 I

Irydlrect As A Percent of Obeet

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Countiee. Inc.

SS-2017-BeAS-01-SENIO

Exhibit B-4

Page i of i
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Exhibit 6-3, Amendment 1

Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGCT PERIOD

Biddef/Progrwn Name: Community Action Program Bel knap Merrimacfc Ceuntlea. Inc.

Budget Request for Senior Companion Program
INmrmoiRFP)

Budget Period: July 1, 2020 through September 30, 2020

Total Program Cosr Contractor Share I Match Funded t>y DHHS contract eh

Line Item Indirect Total Total

1. Total Salafy/Wases 3,167.50 3,167.50 3.187.50 3.187.50

2. Employee Benefits 450.00 450,X 450.00 450.00

3. Consultants

4. Equipment:
Rental

Repair arxl Maintenance

Purchase/Depredation

5. Supplies:
Educaltortal

Pharmacy

Office

6. Travel 25.00 25.00 25,00 25.00

7. Occupancy 2,125.00 2.125.00 2,125.00 2,125.00

6. Current Ewerwes

Telephone

Postafle 212-50 212.50 212.50 212.50

Sutwcriptions
Audit and Legal

Board Expenses

Software

10. Marketina/Commuucations •
11. Staff Education arxl Training

12. Subcontrects/Aorocments-
13. Other (specific details mandatory):
Volunteer Travel 1.500.00 1.500.00 1.500.00 1.500.00

TOTAL 7,500.00 7i500.00 "J 7,500.00 7,500.00 I

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0-0*

Corrsnunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

$S-2017-BEAS-01-SENIO

Exhibit B-3. Amendment 1

Page 1 of 1

Contractor's InllialJ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic^

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
OHHS Information

Security Requirements O ̂  oa/O
Page 1 of 9 DateQ 'otI



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initlais^-^A
DHHS Information

Security Requirements 0
t*Z2vllUlPage 2 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

11. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said

application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ.email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Extiibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If

End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS informabon
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems); the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V4. Last update 04,04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials Q ri
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system{s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone, End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:,

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0004072372

%

Ui

o

A
%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd day of April A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Dennis T. Martino. Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties.
Inc. (hereinafter the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the
duly elected and acting Secretary-Clerk of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am
familiar with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with
respect to the contents of such books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corooration have
authorized, on 01/18/2018 such authority to be in force and effect until 9/30/2020
(contract termination date), (see attached)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of
the Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Jeanne Agri, Executive Director

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire, (state of
incorporation) law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been
modified, amended or rescinded and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof. Excerpt
of dated minutes or copy of article or section of authorizing by-law must be attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation
this 29th day of August .2018 .

Secretary-Clerk

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF MERRIMACK

On this day of August .20^^ . before me, Kathy L. Howard the

undersigned Officer, personally appeared Dennis T. Martino who acknowledged her/himself to be

the Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., a corporation

and that she/he as such Secretary-Clerk being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument

for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Kat^ly L. ja6ward/ Notary Public"
Notary Public/Justice of the Peace

KATHY L. HOWARD Notsy Pddio. H«w Hampdiire
Commission Expiration Date: ^MyCcxttminkaExpiretOcfpba^
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ACCORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poi!cy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

PIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester MH 03101

NAME^^^ Karen Shaughnesey
[K PHv (603)669-3218 «03)64s-433i

kshaughne8syOcrossagency.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC »

INSURERAIllinois National Ins. Co.

INSURED

Community Action Programs,

Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.

P. O. Box 1016

Concord HH 03302

INSURERS National Union Fire Insurance 19445

INSURERS K«ranite State Health Care and Human

INSURERoNanover Ins Co. 22292

INSURERE;Berk6hire Hathawav. Inc.

INSURER F;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATENUMBER:17-18 All 18-19 WC/Crime REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE"AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVW MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

soroi—
WVDTYPE OF INSURANCE

TJBBU
INSD POLICY NUMBER

POUCY EFF
IMWDD/YYVYl

POUCY EXP
IMWDOrrYYYl UMITSINSR

JJB.
COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

Including Profeaalonal

EACH OCCURRENCE

OAMACE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occufreocet

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I I I I LOG
OTHER;

06-UC-067991165-2

83471794

10/1/2017

4/1/2018

10/1/2018

4/1/2019

MEO EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Olreclors & Officer* Uablllty

COMBINED SINGLE LIMiT
(Ea accidenit

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY 1,000,000

ANY AUTO

ALL 0\ANED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

29-CA-069971915-0 10/1/2017 10/1/2018 BODILY INJURY (Per acddeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddenU

Uninsured mo(or1*l combined 1,000,000

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 5,000,000

AGGREGATE 5.000,000

RETENTION $ 10.000 39-UD-016698260-3 10/1/2017 10/1/2018

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS-UABIUTY y/N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER«XECUTIVE I 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(MandalofylnNH) ' '
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

HCH8201B0000011

(3ft.) NH

All ofClcere included

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
_ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1.000.000

2/1/2018 2/1/2019 E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY UMIT 1,000,000

Blanlcet Crime

Professional/NalpracCice

BDV1945863

KN020794

3/27/2018

12/30/2017

3/27/2019

13/30/2018

Limit

Limit;: 1.000,000 /3.000,000

500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACOR0101, Additional Remartts Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

NH Dept. of Health & Human Seirvlces
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

T Franggos/JSC

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

INS025 (7014011

1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Phone (603) 225-3295

(800) 856-5525

Fax (603) 228-1898

Web www.bm-cap.org
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BELKNAP-MERRIMACKCOUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE I96S

2 Industrial Park Drive

P.O. Box 1016

Concord, NH

03302-1016

COMMtrNTTY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The purpose the corporation includes providing assistance for the reduction of
poverty, the revitaiization of low-income communities, and the empowerment of
low-income families and individuals to become fully self-sufficient through planning

and coordinating the use of a broad range of federal, state, local, and other^sistahce
(including private resources) related to the elimination of poverty; the organization
of a range of services related to the needs of low-income families and individuals, so
that these services may have a measurable and poteritially major impact on the

causes of poverty and may help the families and individuals to achieve self-
sufficiency; the maximurn^participation of residents of the low-income communities
and members of the groups served to empower such residents -and members to
respond to the unique problems and needs within their communities; and to secure a
more active role in the provision of services for private, religious, charitable,, and
neighborhood-based organizations, individual citizens, and business, labor, and
professional groups, who are able to . influence the quantity and quality of
opportunities and services for the poor.

I

(Approved by Agency Board of Directors on 02/24/05
as part of the Agency Bylaws.)

CAPBMCI Siatcmern of Purpose

ALTON
C«ntif 875-7102,

Prospect View Housing 875-3111

BELMONT
Senior Center 267-»867

Heritage Terr. Housjng 267^-8801

BRADFORD
Senior Center 938-2104

CONCORD
Ana Center 225-6880

Head Start 224-6492

Early Head Start
ConMrit Area

Meals on Wheels.

.224-6492

Concord Area Transit 225-1989

Horseshoe Pond Place 228-6956
WIC/CSFP : 225-2050

Woriiolace Success 223-2305

EPSOM
Meadow Brook Housing_736-82SO

FRANKLIN
Area Center 934-3444

Heed Start 934-2161

Earty Head Start 934-2161
Ser^ Center,- — 934-4)51

Riverside Housing 934-5340

LACONIA
Area Center 524-5512

Head Start —.528-5334

Early Haad Start 528-5334

Senior Center.: .. 524-7689

Family Planning. ..524-5453

Workplaca Success 524-4367

MEREDITH
Area Center 279-4096

NEWBURY
NewtMjry Commons

Housing. 763-0360

PEMBROKE
Village et PemtKoke Farms
Houslrtg 485-1842

PITTSFIELD
Senior Center —435-8482

Head Start— —435-6618

SUNCOOK
Area Center— 485-7824

Senior Center 485-4254

TILTON
Senior Center S27-8291

WARNER
A/ee Center 456-2207

Head Start 456-2208

North RkJge Housing—-.4$6-339e
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PROHT^Siam ASSOCIATION

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORG'* NORTH CONWAY

To the Board of Directors Dover . concord
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS? REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of.
financial position as of February 28, 2017 and February 29,2016, and the related statements
of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the years then ended , and the related
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year ended February 28,. 2017,

Management's ResDonsibilitv for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the. preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted Our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and' the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we. plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks, of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such'opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



Opinion

In our opifiibn, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in'all material respects,
'the financial position of^Comrhunity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack" Counties, Inc. as of
February.2&-20.:17-and-February 29; 2016; and the changes in their-net-assets arid their cash
-f!ows:^for-theyears^hen-ended-jn-aCcordan'ce-with-accounting'princip!es~geheralty"accepted1n
the ̂United :States;6f America.

Report on Summarized Comparative information
We ,have prevrausly audited Community Actipn Program Belknap-Merrimack. Counties, Inc.'s
2016 financial, statements, and we expressed, an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial "statements in "bur 7epprt'dated" October 25, 20167ln'our bpihibhT'the" summarized"
co.mparative information presented herein as of and. for the year ended February 29. 2016, is
consistent, in-all material respects, with the,audited financial statements from which it has been
derived:

O^er Information - : _
Our audit-Was-conducted for the.purpose of forrning an opinion on the financial.statements as
a. whole. The accompanying .schedule of';expenditures of federal awards, as'required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements; Cost
Principles" and Audit Requirements for Federal' Awards', the schedule of revenues and
expenditures, and the schedule of . refundable advances >are,-.presented for ..purppses of
addltionaUanalysis.and is-not a requlred part"of-the financial staterhents. Such.information is
theTesppnsibility of management and was derived frorn and relates djrectly ta.the underlying
accburiting; and-other records-used to prepare the financial-statements.. The inforrtiatioh. has
been subjected^to;the.auditing.procedures:applied inThe;audit,offhe financial.statements.-and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare,the firiancial staternents or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance vyith auditing
standardsgenerallyaccepted in the .United States of America. In our opinion, the infdrrhatipn is
fairly stated; in.all material.respects, iri relation to-the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards
jn accordance.vyjth Gove'ivrpent^Auditing Standards', we have. a\so/\ssue6 our report dated
October 3t), 2017, on -our consideration of CbmVnunity ,Actipn . f^rpgram .Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.'s internal control oyer financial reporting and ph our tests of its compliance with
certairiaroyisionsaf-laws,_regulatipns,..contracts,.;and^granUgreementsand.other.rhatterSr:The
.purpose , of .that/report js;.tp-d scope of our4es'ting.'of ihterrial' .cpntrpI p
reporting.and ̂ compliance ._and-;"the results of that testing, and not .to p.rpyide an opinion on
internal control,over finaricial reporting .or on conipliance. That report'is-an integral..part' of an
audit performed .in accordance )w\th Government Auditing Standards \n considering Community
Action Prograjn Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal coritrol over financial reporting
ah'd borhpliance." - ~ '

Concord, New Hampshire
October 30, 2017



COIVIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENTS OR FINANCIAL POSITION
FEBRUARY 28. 2017 AND FEBRUARY 29. 2016

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

. Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Investments . .

-  Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land,ibuildings.and. improvements
Equipment, furniture and vehicles

Total.property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS.

.  Due from related.party

;• Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of notes payable
.. Accounts payable

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

unrestricted

, Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2017

1,732,344
2,161.972

21,530
94,315

. 85,225

4;095.386

4,618,289
5,838.444

10,456,733

6,818,622

3,638,111

139,441

.139,441

163,753

847,707

1,019,426
1,159,331

3,190,217

1,151,156

4,341,373

2,887,454
.644,111

3,531,565

,  2^

$  1,123,997
.  .2.643,755

29,923
100,924
72.306

-  3.970.905

"4,618.289
5.942.708

10,560,997

6.824.303

'  ■3,736i694

.  139.441

'  i39,441

,$ 7,872.938 $ 7,847.040

$  154,380
1,182,814
.  973,674
1.122.035

3,432,903

1,312,780

4,745,683

2,485,093
616,264

3,101,357

$  7,872,938 $ 7,847.040

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK CQUNTIgS. INC

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITiES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2017

Unrestricted

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards $ 15,822,185^
Other funds ■ 2,384,071
In-kind 1,1.00,528
United Way 43,751
Realized gain (loss) on sale of equlpmei 20,250

Total revenues and other support 19,370,785

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS ■ 2,413,922

Total 21,784,707

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages - 7,973^527
Payroll taxes and benefits 1,997,820
Travel 277.832
Occupancy 1,134,026
Program services 7,104,507
Other costs 1,568,475
Depreciation 225,631
In-kind 1,100,528

Total expenses 21,382,346

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 402,361

NET.ASSETS. BEGINNING_QF„YEAR 2.485,093,

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 2,887,454

Temporarily
Restricted

$  2,441,769

2,441,769

(2,413,922)

27,847

27,847

-6.16,264.

$  644,111

2017 2016

Total Total

$ 15,822,185 $ 16,076,420
4,825,840 4,822,670
1,100,528 906,423

43,751 33,840
20,250 (164)

21,812,554 21,8~39,189

.21,812,554 21,839.189

7,973,527 8,035,121
1,997,820 2,120,907
277,832 289,250

1,134.026 1,024i305
7,104,507 7,324,464
1,568,475 1,590,710
225,631 314,017

1,100,528 906.423

21,382,346 21,605,197

430,208 233,992

_ 3„101.357 _-  - -.2,867,365

$  3,531,565 $  3,101,357

See Notes to Financial Statements
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eOlVIMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2017 AND FEBRUARY 29. 2016

2017 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to.reconcile change In net assets to

. net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Gain) loss on,sale of property
. Decrease in current assets:

Accounts receivable
Inventory

' Prepaid expenses
((Decrease) Increase In current liabilities:

Accouritsypayable
Accrued expenses
Refundable adyances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPEF^TING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVJTIES

Additions to property
Investment in'partnership

- Proceeds frpm sale of property

NET CASH USEdIn INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long term debt '

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR

.$ 430,208 $ 233,992

225,631 314,017
(20.250) 164

481,783 261,265
8,393 3.619

, 6,609 87,622

(335,107). (446,853)'
45,752 -(19,379)
37,296 205,532

880,315 639!879

(127.048)
(12,919)
20,250

(119,717)

(152,251)

(152.251)

608,347

1.123,997

(34,749)
(1.409)

(36.158)

(143,670)

.  (143,670)

460,051

663,946

$  1.732,344 $ 1.123.997

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for interest $  109,150 $ 121,170

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTrON PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SfAfEMENT"bF.FUNCTIO
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2017

•  - - - - • - - - - -

2017 2018

Rroaram Mahaaement Totar^ . Total

Salaries and wages $  7,698.893 $ 274,634 $  7,973,527 $ 8,035,121
Payroll taxes and benefits 1,876.786 121,034 1,997,820 • 2;120,907
Travel 276,033 1,799 277,832 ■289i250
Occupancy 1,018,340 115,686 •  17134,026 1i024,305
Program Services 7,104,507 - 7,104,607 7,324.464
OtlieTcpst^. , "  * - — ••• .

-

Accounting fees 9,371 39,517 48,888 47,15"^0
Legal fees 45,214 233 •  45,447 ' 17,957
Supplies 226,486 32,705 259,191 259,621
Postage and shipping 53,947 1,153 55,100 , 58,272
Equiprhent rental and maintenance 5,118 385 '5";503 '3,525.
Printing arid pubiications .4,278 9,689 ■13;967 - - 2,757
Conferences, conventions and meetings •  15,331 12,297 27,628 30.932
Interest 103,199 > 5,951 109,150 121,170
Insurance 118,050 . 39,980 158,030 193,894
Merhbership fees 12,119 7,553 ■19,672- 30i505
Utility and maintenance 67,380 56,036 123;416 140,087
Gornputer services 10,611 26,067 .  36;678 • 38;669
Other . ' 646,214 .19,591 665,805 •646,771
Depreciation 220,884 4,747 225,631 314,017
In kind . 1,100,528 - 1,100,528- ■' 906:423

Total functional expenses $ 20,613,289 $ 769,057 $ 21,382,346^ $ 21,605il.97

See Notes to Financial Staterhents
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COIVIIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2017

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Cpmmunity Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire-,nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
:needs'of the.low inconne and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support-of various federal,
state, county and local organizations. - .

Basis,of Accountmq

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Priiiciples (GAAP) of the United States.

Financ'raLStatenfient Presentation , .
pnancial :state^ preseritatioh. follo\vs the reconimendatipns pf fhe^.FASB in its
Accounting 'Standard ^Godlficatiori No. 958 • Finapcial-Statements,.. qf/'Not-For-Pibfit
b'tyanizathns. Under FASB ASC No. 958, the Organization js required to 'report'

■iiifbrmation.regarding its financial position and activities.according tpThree classes of
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted' net assets. The classes of net assets are,.determined by .the^preserice or
absen.ce ofrdonpr-restrictions. As of 'February 28, '20t7 The- Organlzati'bn .had. no

- permanently.-restricted net assets and had temporarily restricted'net assets of.$644,1.11.

The firiahciat statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information
in. total,but hot by'net asset class. Such information does' hot include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Accprdingly, such infonnation should be read in conjunction with the .Organization's
financial.statements for the year ended February 29, 2016, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Income Taxes
The Organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal
income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue

' Service has determined them to be other than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United, States and.the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for

.  years before 2013.



Accounting, standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for. recognizing, and. a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax re'tufn positions in financial statements; The Organization has analyzed
.its-tax positionTtaken on its;inf6rmation returns-for the years:(2013 through -2016), and
-has-conciuded-thatTno-additiona|-provision-fornncome"taxes-is"hecessary~in~the"
Organization's financial statements.

Property

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value,
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is'required by certain
funding sources." Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows: .

.  Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3 - 7 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally
accepted . accounting principles requires management to, make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. '

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at
times may exceed federally-insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with
respect to these accounts.

Contributions

7^ll^cohtributidfis'al^cdfTsidefed't6"be"av^ira unrestricted use unless sp^ificelly"
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for.future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support, depending on the nature of the restriction; However; if a restriction is
fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the Organization reports
the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions iri accordance with FASB ASC No.
Q58, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided^vahous services throughout the year, that are not recognized as
contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under FASB ASC
No. 958 were not met.



In^Kind Donations / Noncash Transactions
Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met. This represents

•  the estirnated fair value fpr the service, supplies and space that the Organization might
.incur under normal;,operating activities, The Organization received .$1,100,528 in
donated facilities, services and supplies for the year ended^ February 28 2017 as
follows: . •

The Organization receives contributed professional services that are required to be
recorded In accordance with FASB .ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of these
services was determined to be $200,362 for the year ended February 28, 2017.

The Orgariizatiph also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded In accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair
value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $898,566 for the vear
ended February 28, 2017. . . .

The Agency pays below-market rent for the use of certain facilities. In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the difference between amounts paid for the
use of the facilities and the fair market value of the rental space has been recorded as

^  an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in the accompanying financial
statements. The estimated fair value of the donation was determined to be $1 600 for
the year ended February 28, 2017.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the year ended February 28, 2017 amounted to $46,709.

2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
was estimated to be zero at February 28, 2017. The Organization has no policy for
charging interest on overdue accounts.

3. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$1,159,331 as of February 28. 2017.

4. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees.- The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for. the year ended February 28, 2017 totaled
$207,607.



5. LEASED FACIUTIES

Facilities^ occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years: For the year ended February 28,'2017rthe^annual lease-expense for the leased

,  fdcilities"was"$464";83lT ^

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows;

Year Ended

February 28 Amount

■2018 $ 336,450 -
.  ■■ . ■ 2019 ■ 107,326

2020 . 94,916
2021 ' 88.762

- 2022 " 88.762
Thereafter 1.142.527

Total $ 1.858.743 ,

6. ACCRUED EARNED TIME
The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $403,742 at February 28,
2017.

7. BANK LINE OF CREDIT
The,Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments
based on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (3.75% for the year ended February 28,
2017) plus 1%, but not less'than 6% per annum. The line is secured by all the
Organization's assets. There was no outstanding balance on the line at February 28,
2017.

8. LONG TERM DEBT
Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 28, 2017:

5.75% note payable to a financial institution In monthly
installments for principal and interest of $12,373 through July,
2023. the note is sebured by property of the Organization for
Lakes Region Family Center. $ 891,657

3% note payable to the City of Concord for leasehold
Improvements in monthly installments for principal and interest
of $747 through May, 2027. The note is secured by property of
the Organization for the agency administrative building
renovations. 78,987

/
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Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for principal and
interest of $4,842 through May, 2023. Interest is stated at 1%
above the prime rate as published by the Wall Street Journal,
which resulted in an interest rate of 4.75% at February 28. 2017.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage and
assignment of rents and leases on property located in Concord. ■
New Harhpshire for Early Head Start. 325,825

4.75% note payable to Rural Development in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $148 per month through
June, 2031. The note is secured by property of the
Organization for the Franklin Community Services building. 18.440

■  Total ■ 314,909
Less amounts due within one year 163.753

Long term portion $ 1.151.1.5R

The scheduled maturities of long term debt as of February 28, 2017 were as follows:

Year Ending
February 28 Amount

2018 $ 163,753
2019 173.709
2020 184,280
2021 , 195.505

'.2022 207,428
Thereafter 390.234

S  1.314.909

9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 29. 2017:

Land $ 168,676
Building and improvements 4,449_613
Equipment and vehicles 5.838.444

■  10,456,733
Less accumulated depreciation 6.818.622

Property and equipment, net

Depreciation expense for the year ended February 28, 2017 was $225,631.
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10. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreerhents, the Organization is required to use the. funds within a certain period and for
purposes-specified-b'y-the governing-laws and-reguiations.-lf-expehditures-were-found
not-to-haye-beepi-made-in-GGmpiianGe-with-the-laws-and-regulations^the-Qrganizatlon-
nijght, be^required'toj- re _ Np^ PXoy!s^ipnsihaye..been ;itiade for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed
as of i=ebrljary 28, 2017. Monitoring has not indicated any discrepancies.

11. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

.  ...F_orl.the_year_.ended.lFebruary...28, .20.17, approximately._$9,5.00,OpO.„(44%) of the
Organization's total .revenue was received from the Department of Health and Human
Services. The future scale and nature of the Organization is dependent upon continued
support from this department.

12. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

At February'-28, 2017, temporarily'restricted net assets consisted of the following
unexpended, purpose restricted donations:

Restricted Purpose

Seriior Center $ 128,333
Elder Services . 297,725
NH Charitable Fo.undation, Mary Gale 22,064
NH Rotary Food Challenge 5,067
Gbmmoh Pantry 6,472
Community Crisis 3,578
Caring Fund 16,090
Agency-FAR - 12,793
Agency-H/S 149,305
FGP/SCP Assoc. Region 1 157
Agency-WIC/CSFP . . 1.864
Other'Programs : "663

,  $ 644.111

13. Related party transactions
The Organization is related to the following corporation as a result of common
management:

Related Party Function

CAPBMC Development Corporation Real Estate Development

There was $139,441 due from CAPBMC Development Corporation at February 28,
2017.

12



The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Related Party Function

■Belmbnt Elderly Housing, Inc. - HUD Property
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property .
Alton Housing-for the .Elderly, Inc. HUD Property
Pembroke Housing forthe Elderly, Inc. ■ HUD Property
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc: HUD Property

-  -Kearsarge Elderly Housing. Inc. HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation . HUD Property
Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership ■ Low Income Housing Tax Credit'Property

- Twin Rivers Gomrriunlty Corporation - ■ Property Development
Qzanam Place; Inc; . ' .. Transitional Supportive Services
TFiCC Housing Liniited Partnership I Low Income Housing Tax Credit Property

The services perforrned by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD- properties)^ HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The total amount due from the related parties (collectively) at February 28, 2017 was
$88,933 and is included in accounts receivables.

14. RECLASSIFICAtlON
Certain amounts and accounts, frorn the prior, year financial, statements have been
reclassified to enhance,the comparability with the presentation-of the current year.

15. FAIR VALUE OF,FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
. Community Action .PrograrnBelkhap-Merrimack Counties, Inc^-has also invested money
relating to its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $84,225 at February 28. 2017.

ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value
which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework
in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which
emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, npt an entity-specific
measurerrient. and requires expanded disclosures about fair vaiue'rheasurements.
In accordance with FASB ASC 820, the Organization may use valuation techniques

,  consistent with market, income and cost approaches to measure fair value. As.a
basis for considering market .participant assumptions in fair value measurements,'
,FASB ASC, 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used
in measuring fair values.. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1
measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of
the fair value hierarchy under FASB AsC 820 are described as follows: •

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.
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Lever2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted hna'rket prices
in active, markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the
reporting^daterand fair-value can be determined-through the use-of models or other
-valuation-methodologies: ^ ^ ^—

Leyel:3 ■-:.)np.yts.^to th$ valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in situations
-where there is little or no.market activity, for the asset or Ijability-arid the reporting

.  ■ entity- makes , estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of the asset or
.  liabilityMnGluding assumptions regarding risk.

At Febfuafy;28;-2017,:the .Organization's, investments were classified as Level 1 -and were
based on. fair value. .- . .

- Fair Value Measurementeusinq Significant Observable Inputs (Level 1V

Beginning balance - mutual funds , . $ 72,306
Total gains (losses) - realized/unrealized 11.443
Purchases ^ 476

.  Ending Balance - mutual funds

The carrying amount of cash, current- assets,' other assets and Ourrent liabilities,
approximates fair-value-because of the short maturity of those instruments.

The Organization invested $1,000 during the year ended FebruaryV28, 2017 in a
Partnerehlpi The Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health. ' '

16. FISCAL AGENT
Commuhity,Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. acts as the'fiscal agent
for the .following community organizations: ' Franklin Cpmitiunrty-" Se.r^iTOs Building

;(Frankiin),';the- Ciommon Pantry (Lacbnia), the Caring Fund''(Meredith)^'the NH Food
Pantry Cpalition, the NH Rotary, Food Challenge andTGP/SCP'T^T^Iati^R'^iornT
The Agency provides the management and oversight of.the revenues received
(donatibris)iahd^the/expense.s. (utilities,To6d.and.oiTiergency_ser^

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsbquent^'eyents are events or transactions that occur after the'statement of financial
posltiomdate^' b^ statements are avaiiable'to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events"'af^^ tr^sa'ctidrrs' tHat 'pfd^^ ^Viderice~abdut
conditions that' existed at the statement of financial "position, date, including - the
estimates inhefent th the process of preparing financial statements." Nonrecognized
:subsequent.events are events that provide evidence :about 'coriditiohs that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through October 30, 2017, thb' date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(See Independent Auditors' Report)
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. ING:

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
——FOR-THE-YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY.28. 2017 - - -

NOTE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of ■expenditures of Federal Awards (the'Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Corrimunity Action Program. Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February-28, 2017. The information'In this Schedule,is presented In
accordance-With-the requirements of Title 2 .U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost. Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform.Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting, Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE
Community.Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected potto
use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD COMMODITIES
NonmQne.tarY-assJsJance is.reported Jmthe.Schedule at the fajr value of the
commodities received and disbursed.
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independent AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COWIPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUpiT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors /-

Comrn.unity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing- Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States the financial
s^tatements of Community Action Program Belkpap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28, 2017, and
the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated October 30, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control'over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, vve do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,. Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in iriternal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and' correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combinatton of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might^be material-weaknesses or-significant deficiencies.-Given these limitations;-during
-our-auditwe-didmot-identify-any-deficlencies"in-internahcontroHhat-we-consider-to-be-materiai-
weaknesses..However, fnaterial weakhesses.may.exist that have.not been identified;

Compiiahce and Other Matters

As part of obtaining, reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement,
.we performed tests''bf" its~co7TTpliance w certaim provisions, of lawsTregulatioris, "contracts,
and grant^agreements'; ndncbmpliance with which could have a^direct-andimaterial 'effect on
"the determination of finaricial;-statement amounts'. However," providing -an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our,audit,' and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. Ttie'results of our tests disclosed no instances of rioncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion oh the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in , accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,This comhiunicatjon is not suitable
for anyother purpose, ' - .

Concord. New^Hampshire
October 30. 2017
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. IMP.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack.Counties. Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Qounties. Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2017.
Cdmmunity Action- Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our. responsibility is to express, an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued
by the Cohiptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether .noncompllance with the types of compliance requirements referred to aboye
that could have a direct and material effect on .a major federal program occurred.-An audit
includes examining; on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination, of
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In-our opinion,: Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc. complied, in all
■material respectsrwith"the types-of cbmpliancisTequirements-referred to above that could have
"a"direct"and'material:effeGton"each:"ofits'majorfederahprograms'for the'year-ended'Pebruary"
28,^017; ' V. .-

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance v^/ith the-types-of
oompliance^ requirements fefeTred -to above. ' In planning and performing o'uf audit of
compliance; we considered Community Action Program .-Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s
intemal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect;on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
apprbprjate. in the pircumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each rhajor federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with..the U niform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an .opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design, or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there Is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control
over.compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough ,to merit
attention bv those charged with governance. ^

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph-of-this section-and-was not designed to identify all deficiencies in-internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weakriesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requiremehts of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
October 30, 2017
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
■  FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2017

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community^ Action" Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting, principles.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
\he -lndependent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over. Financial Reporting ̂ and on
•Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances'of noncornpliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc., which would be required to be reported in

. accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.'

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and

..On Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported,

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award progranhs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs. ̂

6. There" were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs include:
93.568 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
17.235 Senior Community Service Employment Program
FOOD DISTRIBUTION CLUSTER

10.565 Commodity Supplemental Food Program
10.568 Emergency Food Assistance Program (Administrative Costs)
10.569 Emergency Food Assistance Program (Food Corhmodlties)
NON-FEDERAL

NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION, Electric Assistance Program .

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9... Community.Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to be a low-
riskauditee.
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM RFr KKIAP ■ MERRIMACK COIINTIFS INn

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE LOW INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM - CFDA 93.568

Revenues

Division of Human Resources
Agency support.

Expenditures
Personnel

Fringe benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Direct program costs
Other costs

Grant Period Grant Period
1D/1/15-9/30/16 10/1/16-9/30/17 Total

$  840,711 $ 2,500,088 $ 3.340.799
36,288 - 36,288

$  876,999 ■$ 2,500,088 $ 3,377.087

$  153,685 $ 196,427 $ 350,112
18,011 37,936 55,947

3.783 2,213 5,996
29,956. • 25,603 55.559

635.259 2.213.931 2,849,190
36,305 23.978 60.283

$  876,999 $ 2,500,088 ■$ 3,377,087.

See Independent Auditors' Report
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IMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

. SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES:
FOR THE SENIOR COMPANION PROGRAM - CFDA 94.016

FOR THE YEAR ENDEd'FEBRUARY 28. 2017

Grant Period Grant Period

7/1/15-6/30/16 7/1/16-6/30/17 Total

Revenues

' Corporation for National Services $ - 130.956 •$ 202,716 - -$- 333.672

Expenditures

Personnel

Fringe benefits
Travel .

Other costs

97,392

(8,582)
29,917
12,229

154,275

19,414

27,146
1,881

251,667

10,832

57,063
14,110

$  130,956 • $ 202.716 $. 333,672

See Independent Auditors' report
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE HEAD START PROGRAM - CFDA 93.600

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2017

Grant Period

1/1/16-12/31/16

Grant Period

1/1/17-12/31/17 Total

Revenues

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services $ 3^614,211
In-Kind 430.127

Other 21,022

606,248
130,994

3,619,459
•  561,121

21,022

$  3.465.360, $ 736.242 $ 4.201.602

Expenditures
Personnel

Fringe benefits
T ravel

Occupancy
In-Kind

Other costs

$  1.919,792
307,344
36,960

295.062

430,127
476,113

421,587
32,948

7.205
63,268

130,994
80.240

2,341,379

340,292
44.165
358,330
561,121
556,353

$  3,465.398 $. 736,242 ' $ 4,201.640

See Independent Auditors' Report
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COMMUNITY ACTION PRbGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SfcHEbULE oFrEVENUES EXPENSES
FOR THE NUTRITION AND eLdER SERVICES. PROGRAM -

CFDA 93.045, 93.667 and 93.053-

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 2872017

Grant Period

7/1/15-6/30/16

Grant Period

7/1/16-6/30/17 Total

Revenues

NH.Department of.Health and Human Services..
-Title XX. '

Title Ni Part C ,

NH Department of Health and Human Services, NSIP
Other •

150,685

300,912

104,603
224.628

325.417

652,003

110,386
448,066

476,102

952,915

214.989
672,694

$  780,828 $ 1,535,872 $ 2,316.700

Expenditures
■ 'Personnel

Fringe beriefits
Occupancy

Travel

Other costs

354,050

42,442

60,226

45,584

258,931

692,468

86,697

130,123

82,183
503,842

1,046,518

129,139

190,349

127.767
762,773

$  761,233 $ 1,495,313 $ 2,256,546

Seie Independent Auditors' Report
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE ELECTRIC ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2017

Grant Period Graht Period

10/1/15-9/30/16 10/1/16-9/30/17 Total

Revenues $, 875,325 $ 1,063,733 $ 1,939,058

Expenditures
Personnel $ 162,337 $ 134,123 $ 296,460
Fringe benefits 24,448 23,884 48,332
Travel 3.020 1,958 4,978
Occupancy 14,738 13,333 28,071
Other costs 670,432 890,435 1,560,867

$ 874,975 $ 1,063,733 $ 1,938,708

Note:

Tested as a major program for the year ended February 28,2017. See Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs on page 22.

See Independent Auditors' Report
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM'BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES"- BY PROGRAM
-  FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2017

Twin River Community Corp (055 & 056)

Revenues

38.416

—Exoenditures-

■42,468

Cottage Hotel (066 & 067) 10,567
\

10,567

Sandy Ledge (095 & 096) 8,786 24,981

Ozanam (106 & 107) 12,000 18,697

Food Pantry (131) 21,075 .  15,533

Seriior Center Program (138) 28,594 26,409

Franklin intergeneratlonal (186 & 187) 13.959 760

Maty Gale (207) .  . 25,000 .  . 2,936

Senior Companion Program - Non Federal (225 & 226) 45,482 77,986

Senior Companion Program - State (235 & 236) 15,832 15,832

Franklin Community Services (295 & 296) 22,510 27,405

' Head Start - Childcare (355 & 356) 1,097,490 797,744

-Lakes Region Family Center (385 & 386) , 158,231 158,231

NH Modular Ramp (434 & 435) 1,195 3,633

New Hampshire Housing Guarantee Program (495 & 496) 194,402 194,402

Core Program (505 & 506) 614,981 579,366

Common Pantry (555. & 556) 50 113

WjC (600)^ 13,133 1,418

Epsom Elderly Housing (645 & 646) 63.640 63.640

See Independent Auditors' Report
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2017

Revenues Exoendltures

Belmont Housing (656 & 657) 63,054 63,054

Alton Housing (666 & 667) 60,766 60,766

Kearsarge Housing (676 & 677) 69,648 67,831

Riverside Housing (686 & 687) 69,801 68,026

Pembroke Housing (701 & 702) 58,762 58,762

Homeless Revolving Loan (728) 5,909 5,909

Area Centers (766 & 767) 193,542 267,685

THE FIXIT Program (836 & 837)
- 1,185

Loan Guarantee Program (847) 34,483 34,483

MC Loan Guarantee Program (848) 3,283 3,283

The Caring Fund (866 & 867) 324

\

2,751

FGP/SCP Association Region 1 (875)
- 875

Agency WiC/CSFP (883) 4,417 1,306

Newbury Elderly Housing (885 & 886) 38,637 38.637

Housing Futures (897) 12,000 12,000

Agency Account (911 & 980) 145,341 147,450

Agency Account PAP (922) 83,987 97,662

Agency Account SCP (935 & 936) 9,751 3,589

H/S Agency (946 & 947) 22,692 25,330

Agency Development Fund (981) 27,351 37,305

See Independent Auditors' Report
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2017

' FUND # FUND NAME HHS PROGRAM CFDA# AMOUNT

128 ^P-Lead Agency . , . $ 18,203
147 Meirimack County Service Link 93,778 114,553
198 Electric Assistance Program 49,916
497 NH Housing Guarantee Program 88,811
548 Summer Feeding 49,271
577 Fuel Assistance Program 93,568 (3,041 of deferred amount is not federal) 232,180
595 Homeless Prevention 222,363
717 Concord Area Transit 47,146
728 Homeless Revolving Loan Fund-Belknap County 30,407
729 Homeless Revolving Loan Fund-Merrimack County 8,179
737 WInnlpesaukee Transit 18,892
837 . FIxIt Program 84,540
858 New Start Program 113,347
876 Emergency Solutions Grant 1,894
883 Agency Account-WIC/CSFP 1,250
908 Community Services Block Grant 93.569 72,913
947 Agency Account-Head Start 5.667

, TOTAL S1 1sg aai

See Independent Auditors' Report
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Effective June 2018

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
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Jeanne Agri

PROFESSIONAL PROFIiE

Versatile and experienced leader with highly developed communication skills: written, verbal and presentational. Adept
in coaching and mentoring employees and colleagues as evidenced by my selection by the National Office of Head Start to

, serve as a mentor for new Head Start Directors. Committed to continuous improvement of activities to ensure they meet
outcomes approved by the board through sb-ategic planning, creating goal-oriented systems and conformance with all
local, state and federal guidance.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Concord, NH
Executive Director 2018-present

Assures the organization has long-range strategy which makes consistent and timely progress towards meeting
the Agencies overall mission

•  Responsible for the general supervision of all grant awards, ensuring that all statutory, regulatory, and /or
program and ftnancial requirements are met, that generally accepted accounting principles are applied, and
that all program and financial policies and procedures are adhered to.

•  Provide leadership in developing programs, organizational structures and financial systems that carry out the
instructions and policies authorized by the Board

, • Establish sound working relationships and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizations
and all funding sources important to the development of the agency and programs.

•  See that the Board Director is kept fully informed and up to date on the condition of the organization and all
important Federal, State or local requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
Education and Nutrition Operations Director 2016 - 2018

•  Coordinate, manage and monitor workings of Child Development, Women Infant and Children, and"
Literacy Programs, as well as development of an agency wide Two-Generational Approach to services

•  Formulate, improve and implement departmental and organizational policies and procedures to
maximlze-output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures
Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational structure;
delegation of tasks and accountabilities

•  Supervise staff, including establishment of work schedules and monitoring and evaluating performance in
partnership with Executive Director

•  Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; implement and manage operational
plans

Director of Child Development Programs 2001 -2016
Hire, coach and evaluate the performance of Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators, Center
Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staff

•  Provide coaching, and learning opportunities for all employees focused on promoting, supporting and
improving early development of children from the prenatal stage to five years of age using research -
based practices

•  Plan and implement strategic interventions with Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators and
Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and direction
Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating and strengthening systems to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Develop internal structures, systems, and policies supporting major content areas of Head Start program
including education, health, mental health, social services, parent involvement, nutrition, disabilities , and
transportation

1

.  i



Collaborate with managers and internal fiscal department in the monitoring and conti'o) of component
budgets; identification and interpretation of Head Start and community needs; conformance to the
Performance Standards and other regulatory requirements
Work in partnership with internal departments to support project goals and meet customerexpectations
Establish.and maintain relationships and collaborations with publjc school districts, systems of higher
education, and other community agencies and partners

Ensure adequate systems in place to maintain the highest quality of services to children and families in
compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Ensure consistency in service delivery across the program with attention to inclusive practices and
integration of component areas; encourage continuous improvement of systems.

Quality Assurance Director/Co-Director for Child Development Programs 1999-2001
•  Established and managed a robust monitoring, analysis and evaluation system with well-defined results,

milestones, and targets-inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices
•  Monitored for quality and compliance at Grantee and Delegate level
•  Worked closely with program.Director to review, track and assess monitoring compliance throughout

program operations
•  Developed and implements a written quality assurance and performance evaluation plan in conjunction with

Governing Board, Policy Council
•  Interpreted and evaluated a variety of information to present it in meaningful oral or written form for ^

varied audiences and provide reliable analysis leading to sound decision-making

Area Manager/Education Manager 1997-1999
•  Supervision of various Child Care sites including direct supervision of Center Directors/Site Managers
•  Coordinate personal and professional development and training plans for staff and ensure teaching staff

progress towards educational requirements as supported by the Performance Standards
•  Documented and administered both positive and negative feedback and utilize Performance

Improvement Plans when warranted.

Child Care Center Director/Site Manager 1995-1997
•  Supervised, mentored, coach and administered work plans and directives to staff
•  Communicated areas of performance improvement to staff and promote training that reflected individual

needs of staff members and the te^ as a whole
•  Ensure program compliance with codes of state and local, licensing agencies and grant requirements

New Hampshire Technical College, Nashua, NH
1995-1997-

•  Taught Child Growth & Development and assisted in curriculum development for Early Childhood
Education Program. , , '

•  Planned and organized instruction to maximize documented student learning .
•  Employed appropriate teaching and learning strategies to communicate subject matter to students
•  Modified, where applicable, instructional methods and strategies to meet diverse student needs

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Master's in Business Administration June 2017

Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH
Bachelors of Arts in Elementary Education



KATHRYN R. LAVIGNE

WORK EXPERTENCF.

July 1993-Present

November 1992-

June 1993

January 1989-
November 1992

CHIEF ACCOUNTANT

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
P.O.Box 1016, Concord, New Hampshire 03302-1016

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

John Killion & Co., Concord, New Hampshire
Responsible for compilations and reviews of commercial accounts, preparation of
financial statements and tax returns. Auditing at junior level for nonprofit
organizations. Preparation of vyeekly payrolls, quarterly payroll tax returns and
year-end W-2's for service bureau accounts. Installation of accounting software.
Set-up of clients chart of accounts and trial balance. Software used: Real World,
Word Perfect, Cougar Mountain, Accountants Trial Balance, Fixed Assets
Management and Tax Machine.

OFFICE MANAGER

Rudolph Electrical Co., Inc., Concord, New Hampshire
Supervise staff of three. Responsible for implementing computerized accounting
system. Handle all aspects of accounting, i.e. accounts receivable, accounts
payable, payroll, general ledger and job cost. Responsible for preparation of weekly
payroll, monthly financial statements and quarterly payroll tax returns. Collect
overdue accounts.

October 1979-

September 1988

June 1986-

September 1988-

August 1984-
September 1988

October 1979-

August 1984-

EDUCATION

1982-1989

1963-1967

Rivco, Penacook, New Hampshire

ACCOUNTING MANAGER

Supervise staff of seven. Responsible for hiring, assigning, appraising performance
and directing department personnel, including recommending compensation
changes and promotions. Participant in audit preparation. Administrator of profit
sharing plan and trip promotion program.

CREDIT MANAGER

Monitor all accounts and collect overdue accounts. Determine credit rating of
prospective customers. Open accounts: Consult with lawyers, salesmen and sales
manager. Represent company in court. Handle customer correspondence and
telephone calls. Train and supervise credit personnel.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CLERK
Handle all aspects of accounts receivable and billing. Reconcile accounts. Prepare
monthly sales reports and aged trial balance by customer and by salesmen.

Franklin Pierce College, Concord, New Hampshire
Bachelor's Degree in Accounting and Business Management
May 1989, Graduated Magna Cum Laude

Franklin High School, Franklin, New Hampshire
Business-Secretarial, Graduated with high honors

REFERENCES Available upon request.



SUZANNE L. SINGER, MBA

Director of Business Development
Growth Catalyst - Powerful Sales Strategist - Market Expansion

Top-performing Business Development & Sales Director who builds high-performance
sales teams to develop new markets resulting in higher-margin sales

Consistent Revenue Growth - Valued Mentor & Leader
Business Development strategist who builds strong, dedicated client relationships and partnerships that are built
on trust. Executive with an entrepreneurial spirit who leads companies to growth and market differentiation with
a record of generating new business opportunities and developing lucrative partnerships. Proven track record of
implementing the necessary business development strategies to accomplish breakthrough sales objectives while
creating unique market-entry strategies, managing business relationships, building-credibility, and establishing
immediate rapport with potehtial clients. \ .

Contract Negotiations Strategic Plaiihing Market Penetration
Business Leadership Account Management Strategic Alliances
Cross-Functional Leadership Market Expansion Resource Management
^ •' ' . > I - S

Executive Highlights

-Led sales efforts and cultivated business relationships to drive 30%-40% new client revenue annually, with
emphasis on creative marketing strategies and rebranding services.
-Trusted and highly-respected Sales Management leader and Mentor during change management resulting in
company growth of $27million.

■  . Executive Performance .

Community Action Program-Belknap-Merrimack County . ■ .
Director of Elder Services (2018-present)

Scott Farrar at Peterborough (2016-2018) ' .
MARKETING DIRECTOR
Manage Market Sales process of the community to achieve and maintainlOO% occupancy for the community. Managed internal and
external events and trainings. Organized and attended networking opportunities building a strong reputation.

American Red Cross, Massachusetts (2015- 2016) "
District Manager
Led a team of 10 Account Managers to achieve second place in the Nation for Blood Collection for 2015 with
Operating efficiency of 95%. Recruited to lead sales and drive accelerated growth of Red Cross blood services
donor recruitment while managing 10 staff in two offices; increased advisor appointment ratios from 0.9% to
2% and sales conversion ratio from 1.5% to 3% by communicating sales opportunities and coaching advisor
on marketing best practices. Researched market penetration and viability, developed strategies and coinciding
reports to track results; trends, profitability, and areas of opportunity, then adjusted strategies as needed.
Developed and led monthly meetings with COO, CEO and Executive Directors to build One Red Cross
brand.



American Red Cross, Massachusetts (2013-2015)

Business Development Manager .. ....

Aggressively identified, recruited and developed new and lapsed business development resulting in
exceeding annual goal for blood collection for the State of Massachusetts. AchievedllO% of goal
with operating efficiency_of.94%,annually._ Research targeted accounts and.individuals.for;Strategic_ . .... ̂
_grp.wth.opp.ortunities..Responsible.fpr_directing,business de.v.elopment.for_large.business,.militar_y„__
and educational accounts; acted as the key person for negotiation of issues with Executive levels
with high profile account's! CrHtFd,'d'e\^roped"ahd implemehfed Nation'al traiining"for Amount
Managers with new branding'material of One Red Cross. Recruited, hired and training new Business
Development Managers for Massachusetts.

Catholic Charities (2006-2012). ^ ^ - - . . , ..

Diriector.of Marketing/Social-Worker/Admission , - . .. . — _
Established and maintained strong relationship-with critical referral organizations; increase therapy
services for higher billable hours. .Assisted community non-profit organization Monadnock At Horne
with startup. Key role of securing new customers and working with key department heads to ensure a
smooth.transition for residents and families for optimal satisfaction. Train .and mentor staff in areas of
customer service. Act as the Ethics Officer to ensure.all rights are maintained. . . . ^

North Shore. Arc (2012-2009) , . '

Program Director,

ORGANIZAtlONAL LEADERSHIP

•  Valued mentor arid leader-provides employees with the autonomy to do their work well while building
strong, personal relationships to improve communication as well as advance business development

'  efforts. " ■ 1 ' '
•  Experiences, results-driven leader who accelerates customer success, delivers implementation results,

and champions adoption; record of accomplishments with high client satisfaction and a showcase of-
successful prpject delivery. . . .. . . . .. ..
Managed top-performing team including 10 staff; optimized organizational operations, staffing and
succession plans, hired resources conducted performance reviews, arid ensured compliance with
company policies. • ' . ' ' '
Led arid monitored complex projects and worked cross-functionally with various internal groups to
determine project scope, requirements, and resources; managed RFP's and determined best practices
while ensuring project activities aligned with business objectives.

Business Development

•  Built and nurtured C-Level relationships through many varied engagements, successfully implementing
solutions, quickly resolving issues, and closing new business opportunities.

•  Evolved selling strategy across a new portfolio of sales opportunities by introducing solutions for Donor
Recruitrhent-iri-the blood-industry.- —

•  Developed and maintained strong partnerships with in specific vertical markets with increased growth
by 40%'morithiy

•  Maintained 10()% of new business monthly goal with an average of 90% operating efficiency
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WORKSHOPS, Training, AND Seminars
•  Created training module for on boarding Red Cross employees with vision of One Red Cross

Staff Trainer and safety officer; trairi and retrain staff to maintain a safe work environment reduce injury
Ethic s officer in Long Term, Assisted Living and Residential program

•  Developed client orientated operations manual with detailed staff ftmctions
•  Staff Trainer for Self E»etermination in focused area of Developmental Disability, Elderly and Traumatic

Brain Injury

•  Staff trainer of Learning Styles with staff- increase connectivity with clients and co-worker

EDUCATION

Master of Business Administration, 2001
Franklin Pierce University, NH
Bachelor of Science, 1995

Keene State College, NH
Associate Degree Chemical Dependency 1995

Keene State College, NH

AFFILIATIONS

Board of Directors Red Cross NHA^T 2017-Present
Red Cross Bio-Med Chair 2017-Present

Chamber of Commerce Peterborough/Jaffrey/Rindge 2016-Present
Peterborough Woman's Club 2017-Present

Eastern Star 2015 ■

Children's Friends, 2014-2016
Monadnock At Home 20! 1-2013

Board of Directors: New Hampshire Dance Institute 2006-2008
Grand Circle Community Resource Team 2002-2003



Michele Cronin Lapjerre

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS:

Gaining, supervising and retaining a team. Proven analytical andstrategic thinker havjng researched and recommended action plans for hundreds of beneficiaries. Passionate advocate
having created and developed marketing materials to ensure successful outcomes.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Community Action Program- Belknap & Merrlmack Counties, Inc., Concord, NH 03302 July 2018- Present
^  Manager of Senior Companion Program: As Program Manager, responsible for the daily

vnC r t Companion.Program. Actively involved with community organizations, volunteers, and^nteer stations, the representative of the sponsor in signing and approving official project documentation, including
project reports, memoranda of understanding, and/or letters of agreement for in-home assignments.

Plan and devplop all phases of SCP operations; Ensure national service National Service Criminal History Check
are completed for all covered staff and volunteers in accordance with CNCS requirements and agency policy-
Assist with hmng, training, and supervising adequate staff to efficiently carry out, maintain and develop
operations ophe Senior Companion Program; Provide support, information and materials for coordinators and
appraise staff performance. Recruit, select, orient and place volunteers with volunteer stations; Develop and
maintain appropriate fiscal, personnel, program and volunteer records and reports;
Enhance the total efforts of SCP through active involvement with community organizations, other national
service programs, where appropriate; Implement agreed upon performance measure and other FGP/SCP grant
requirement^ Keep Senior Corps Advisory Council members informed and solicit their participation and advice
on matters affecting program operations;

. Work in cooperation with CAP Non-Profit staff, Advisory Council members and volunteer station staff to obtain
resources for programs; Plan, develop, and implement ongoing public relations opportunities, including social
media in cooperation with CAP; Arrange for formal and regular recognition of volunteers, organizations and
individuals who have contributed to the support of SCP;
Assure volunteer orientation, in conjunction with volunteer work stations and staff; In conjunction with SCP
staff, develop and maintain close coordination and relationships with volunteer stations, including development
of volunteer assignment plans; Provide ongoing support to.volunteers; In conjunction with SCP staff, appraise
volunteer performance; Assess appropriateness and/or performance of volunteer stations; Attend training
conferences conducted or authorized

Goodwill industries NNE, Manchester, NH 03103 September 2016- March 2018
Specalist/Career Advisor, Job Connection: Assist with the facilitation of supports and services

that promote greater independence and skill development.
Perform assessment of individuals via need for change and intake with Familles'in Transition participants to
determine skills, needs and goals for employment. -

•  Assist participants with State, Federal and local benefit issues. Provide support with applications
redeterminations and referral.
Refer to outside agencies or within Job Connection to achieve desired goals. Utilize grants, participant funds
vouchers and other means to help participants with financial hurdles.

•  Complete data entry, update spreadsheets and accurately record participant information.



Alltran Health (formerly Financial Health Strategies), Manchester, NH 03102 April 2016- July 2016
Community Benefits Specialist: Work with on-slte hospital to complete screenings of uninsured patients

for potential Medicaid and other available resources.
•  Assist patients in gathering documentation- including applications, releases, and receipts obtained and filed

timely.

•  Coordinate withlocal Department of Health and Human Services in an effort to determine program eligibility.
■  * T" ̂Ent^clear, concisFTTotesln'patienfaccounting systemsr • -

Granite State Independent Living, Manchester, NH 03103 February 2009- March 2016
Work Incentive Coordinator: Provide work.incentive planning, assistance and outreach services to

Social Security beneficiaries and people with disabilities who want to return to work.
•  Selected to serve as BOND specialist for NH, an SSA pilot program giving beneficiaries the opportunity to work at

higher rates.

•  Assist people with disabilities to successfully enter the workforce.and increase their, self-sufficiency by providing
clear, accurate and credible information about the impact of work on benefits

•  Provide access to work incentives; provide referrals to other supports such as employment networks and the
state vocational rehabilitation program; and assist with problems related to benefits that may arise as the
individual begins working.

Staples, Hooksett ,NH 03106 May 2008- February 2009
Sales Manager: Managed sales of the company's products and services. Ensured consistent, profitable

growth in sales revenues through positive planning and management of sales personnel. Identified objectives, strategies
and action plans to improve short and long term sales and earning goals.
•  Improved operations by developing and implementing best practices and individualized strategies;
•  Consistently completed projects and met sales goals. .

Muscular Dystrophy Association, Bedford, NH 03110 December 2000- May 2008
Fundraising Coordinator: Created fundraising opportunities through various business development

techniques including prospecting, and targeted follow-up and new lead generation.
•  Selected to lead difficult and experimental projects. Executed individual business plans to exceed goals.
•  Recognized as Lock-Up program leader and commissioned/sent into failing offices to assist in redeveloping their

program structure.

•  Consistently met and exceeded budgeted goals for all core programs (ie: Shamrocks Against Dystrophy, Fill The
Boot, Executive Lock-Ups, Jerry Lewis Telethon).

•  Delivered organized, structured and persuasive presentations using effective written and verbal communication.
AssistedlrTid^ifyihg, recrmting7tTaimngTndlfianagihg temporarYXOordinators-and volunteers-Managed
fiscal accountability for significant income requirements.

TRAINING & EDUCATION:

B.A. University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH 03824

Certified Work Incentive Coordinator and Work Incentive Coordinator



Kathleen Stuart

Ob]ective-To secure a position in which I can explore and build experience/skiiis.

Quallflcatlons-I have over 15 years of management experience in the field of human services. My experience includes
working with various adult populations.

Work Historv

January 2016-Present '
Program Coordinator-Senior Companion Program of New Hampshire

Provide oversight of 40 volunteers over the age of 55.
Schedule and facilitate in home introductory visits and assignment plans with volunteers and frail, homebound
seniors

•  Coordinate monthly inservices and annual volunteer appreciation events

Recruit, enroll and train volunteers in Hillsborough County and the Seacoast region
Process biweekly timesheets (volunteers are stipended) for volunteers

February 2015-January 2016
Assisted Living Manager. Brightview"Senior Living Billerica, MA

Provide oversight of over 20 Certified Nurse Assistants

Responsible for scheduling,completion of service plans, QA, ALFA and MA regulation compliance.

December 2009-January 201,5 Easter Seals NH Care Coordinator,
Caring Companions

•  Administrative oversight of 20 or so staff providing in home services to the elderly, chronically ill and disabled.
Maintenance of records for a caseload of over 90 consumers.

Intake, assessment and care plan development for over 90 consumers.

Recruitment, hiring, training and supervision of staff providing in home services.

April 2008-December 2009 Easter Seals NH

Family Resource Worker/Recruiter, Harbor Schools (left due to company dissolution)
Recruitment of foster parents to provide homes to emotionally troubled kids.
Completion of all state regulated assessments in the licensure of prospective foster homes.

•  Coordination of annual foster parent appreciation events and quarterly newsletter for foster parents.
Conducted quarterly, state regulated MAPP training to foster parents for licensure.

August 2004-2007

Program Manager,. North Suffolk Mental Health Inc.

•  • Managed a group home for developmentally disabled men.

Completed all JSP's, trained staff in the implementation of behavior plans and maintained the health and safety of
all residents.

Complied with dietary, budgetary and behavioral methods necessary.

Education

Southern Connecticut State University
Conferred-January 2002 with Departmental Honors BA Mental Health
Psychology GPA 3.84

Awards

Recipient of the SCSU Service Award 2001
.Recipient of the National Italian American Foundation Scholarship Recipient of the Henry
Barnard Distinguished Student Award Recipient of the .State of Connecticut Distinguished
Student Award Recipient of SCSU Alumni Scholarship
Nominated for the Who's Who Among College Students Award President of the SCSU
CIAO Italian Club



BECKY NELSON

Professional Experience

8/2017- Current Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc.
Senior Companion Program Coordinator

•  Supervise senior companions ensuring they provide the best care to Visitees they volunteer with.

9/2011-3/2016 ■ Granite State Independent Living Coordinator Concord, NH

Long Term Services Coordinator/IL Services Coordinator

• Managed and Maintained a caseload of 30-45 consumers assisting them with developing and
maintaining their Independent Living Goals
Trained and supervised attendant care workers on specific processes
Maintained a caseload within the NFTRAN program; a program that assists individuals who are
currently living in a Nursing Home and would like to become an integral part of the community
again

Exercised computer skills in documentation and data entry
Executed administrative activities including department production reports; logs, quality control
reports, as well as time and attendance of attendant care workers

Assisted consumers and families with providing information and referral, advocacy, and promoted
Independent Living within their community
Assisted consumers seeking benefits whether it be for equipment or modifications to their home
as well as locate funding options to assist with this.

Acted as liaison between consumer and state agencies, yoc rehab as well as maintained contact with
case managers when required.

Proficient in Medical Terminology
Obtained Notary Public obtained 2013

10/2008-7/2011 Moore Center Services Provider Manchester, NH 4/2008-7/2011
Healthmasters Paramedical Examiner Boston, MA

9/2007-7/2011 Superior Mobile Medic Paramedical Examiner San Diego, CA 2/2007-7/2011
Exam One Paramedical Examiner Bedford, NH

12/2006-7/2011 APPS Paramedical Examiner Bow, NH

4/2006-2007 NH Oncology & Hematology Phlebotomist Hooksett, NH 12/2005-3/2007
CMC Mom's Place Prenatal Tech/ICU Critical Care Tech. 2003-2004
Home Health & Hospice . LNA Nashua, NH

1999-2000 NH Medical Labs Phlebotomist Manchester, NH 1996-1996
, Ridgewood Health Care Center LNA Manchester, NH

Education

1992-1996 Memorial High School Diploma Manchester, NH
999- Current NH Community Technical College: I am currently two credits away from obtaining my

Associates Degree in Human Science.

References available upon request



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Vendor Name:

Name of Program/Service:

Contract Period:

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Senior Companion Program (SCP)

7/1/2018 - 9/30/2020

l^i^6;ontr;actpKli]

Jeanne Aqri, Executive Director $140,639 0.00%

Kathy Lavlqne, Chief Accountant $70,941 0.00%mm^m
Suzanne Sinqer, Director, Elder Services $69,517 0.00%mmmm

Michele Lapierre, Senior Companion Proqram Manaqer $37,518 0.00%

Becky Nelson, Senior Companion Coordinator $23,296 40.00%

Kathleen Stuart, Senior Companion Coordinator $33,150 0.00%
*

.  $0 0.00%

$0 0.00%

1#

1

$0 0.00%

$0 0.00%

$0 0.00%

$0 0.00%

ro TAL SALARIES (Not to exceed I otal/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budge request)

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (Executive Director. CEO, CFO, etc.). These

personnel MUST be listed, even If no salary Is paid from the contract. Provide their name, title, annual

salary and percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.



Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner

Maureen Ryan, D i re cto r

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

BUREAU OF ELDERLY ADULT SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3867
603-271-9203 1-800-351-1888

Fax: 603-271-4643 TDD Access; 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

September 21, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

•. and the Honorable Council
StaWHpuse' , ,
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

.  REQUESTED ACTION . ■

'  .^Authorize. the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care
Services,-Bureau pf'^ and Adult Services to enter into a retroactive, sole source agreement with
Corrimuhity Acti6n:prbgram Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc., (Vendor # 177203), of 2 Industrial

'.'Pai^ Dnve," Coficprd, N 03302 in an amount-not to exceed $60,000 to provide Senior Companion
services,-effective pctb^^ 1, 2016 through September 30, 2018. Funds are 100% General Funds.

; ■ -Funds are ayailab^ in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2017, and are anticipated to
be available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019, upon the availability and continued appropriation.of
funds .in\the future.;operatirig budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal
Years through the .Budget Office. If needed and justified, without further approval from the Governor and
ExecUtiveCpuhcil.'■^.•-

05-95-48^81010-9010 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS:':ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, VOLUNTEER
ACTIVITIES

State Fiscal
Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Total Amount

2017- 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080013 $22,500 '
' 2018 . ■  ..102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080013 $30,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080013 $ 7,500
Total $60,000



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

-  EXPLANATION

This request Is retroactiye due to unexpected processjing delays. Procurement for the services
was'detayed due to staffing unavailability; this request is sole source because Community Action
Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties. Inc., Is the only sponsor and fiscal agent for the Senior
Companion Program In New Hampshire, primarily funded and regulated by the Federal Corporation for
National and Community Services to provide this program. The Corporation for National and

'Commlinity Service has selected Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc., is
the only agency in New Hampshire to sponsor the Senior Companion Program, the.Bureau of Elderly
and Ad'Ult Services is required under the Senior Volunteer Grant Program, RSA 161-F;40, within the
limits offunds appropriated, to reimburse for covered expenses incurred by the Senior Companion
Program.' • ' ̂ •

The purpose of this request Is to obtain Senior Companion services. The mission of the Senior
Companion program is to prevent instltutionaiization and promote independence for frail elderly adults
by supporting older'iadults In maintaining Independent community living.

The Se'hior Companion Program provides the opportunity for low-income (200% of poverty or
less) adults over the age of fifty-five (55) to serve as compariions. Companions are matched with
homebdund; older adults and provide supportive services" such as companionship, assistance with
anclllat7, household tasks, and socialization. The companions benefit from participation in a rewarding
and worthwhile experience and receive a ■ nontaxable stipend and- mileage reimbursement. The
homebound older adults who are served benefit from regular companionship and reduced isolation.

The Prc^ram currently has volunteers placed throughout seyen (7) counties in New Hampshire!
Additional.fuhdirig;yor-'admlnistrative.staff, volunteer coordination management and an increase in the
number of volunteers, would be needed from the State of New Hampshire, and the Corporation for
National arid. Cdmrnunity Service to allow for expansion of the program statewide. This contract will
seive aDDr6xlmately:^venty (70) companions per contract year

The contractor will conduct surveys of clients, companions and station su|^rvlsors on the
quality of services to ensure that services are dellyered satisfactorily or better. Additionally, the
contrador will be collecting and reporting data on the ''number of volunteers In the program, number of
volunteer hours sjeryed, number of clients and the number of visits, in order for,the Department to
understand potential gaps in service delivery.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the option to extend for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties and further approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Couricil not approve this request, the contractor's ability to
maintain, federal designation and. funding support and continue to operate the program may be in
serious jeopardy and corripanions and clients may not be able to continue to be served.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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Area served; Belknap, Graflon, Hlllsborough, Merrimack, Rockingham, Strafford and Sullivan counties

Source of Funds is 100% General Funds, Grants to Locals, Volunteer Activities.

Respectfully Submitted,

•• •' •• ' *' '•
■  ■-• i-''

'.V '■ • ' '" ■ ' ' ' ■ -' .' ■*'

Approved by:

Maureen Rvaril Director

JetrriBy a. n/ieyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Servi^s'Mission is tojoin communities and families •
•  in providinf opportunities for citizens to achieiv health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject:

Notice- This aRr«?rrcnt and all of its attachrrents shall bccorrc public upon subrrission to Governor and

Executive Council for approval. Any inforrrotion that is private, confidential or proprietary rrust
be clearly identified to the ap.ency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

Department of Health and Hurtian Services

1.3 Contractor Nariie

Cornmunity Action Program Belknap and Mefrimack
Counties, Inc.

1.5 Contractor Phone

Numtier

(603) 225-3295

1.6 Account Numt)er:

05-95r48-481010-

90100000-102-500731

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Eric D. Borrin

1.11 Contractor Signature

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street, Concord. NH 03301

1.4 Contractor Address

2  Industrial Park Drive

Concord, NH 03302-1016

1.7 Completion Date

September 30, 2018

1.8 Price Limitation

$60,000

1.10 State Agency telephone Number
603-271-9558

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Ralph Littlefield, Executive Director

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of New Hampshire County of Merrimack

On 9/12/2016 , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12, '

I. I'j. I Signature, of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
fjr

-KATHY-LrHOWARPMottff Pib6e.Mw iraiijiiiln

rSeall
My Cnffiinlninn Bi^iw Oaoby 16. Mlt

1713.2 Name and'Title of Notary or'Justice of the Peace

Kalhy L. Howard, Notary
1.14 State Agency Signature

1.16 Approva^^the N.H. D^artment of Administration, Division of ?tTSQnTit\(i/applicable)

By- ' Director, On:

1.15 Name and Title of Slate Agency Signatory
MLLuxreen ̂ yan

I  idof. Off/'n^ nP Hurmn Sti )ir^

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

B On:

.18 Approval by the Governor ar^Executive Cqi)ncil

By: \) On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services"). '.

3. EFFECrriVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the .Contactor cornmences the. Services prior to the
Effective Date,'all Services performed by.the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole 'risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the- State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4.. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder. Including,

. -without limitation, the continuMce of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds.. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to.terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified- and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only- and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hewing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the contractor. In addition, the Coritractor shall
comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientatiori, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination. .
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Later (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the. United Slates issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations,and orders,
and the covenants, terms an3 conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not. hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is ia State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule:
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunderi and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within; in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8:2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending alt payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue'to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 setbff^ainst wy other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any ,
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9.DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used, in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of," this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations,, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the. State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an Independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and' hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, Its officers and empldyees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties averted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain In force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and'
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certiflcatc(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting QfTlcer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificale(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requiremeiits of N>l. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers'. Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements, of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
co.nhection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
frirnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of -Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any

'applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment' of any Workers' Compensation

■premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
eriforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of E>efault shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mmling by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only afler approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge -by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20..THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit , any third parties and this Agreem^ent shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference. .

23. . SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Companion Program
SS-2017^EAS-01-SENtO Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with , limited English proficiency, to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services \within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Haniipshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agericy has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

I  j . , •

1.3. The Contractor agrees that the services in this contract are for low-income (200% of
poverty or less) adults over the age of 55 who work as volunteers providing
supportive services such as assistance with daily living tasks, respite and
socialization to homebound elderly and disabled adults who benefit from these
services.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide and ensure delivery of Senior Companion Services in
the counties listed in paragraph 1.4.1. below. However; nothing In this Agreement
shall be construed to limit the ability of the Contractor to provide said services in a
town/city/county not listed in paragraph 1.4.1. below;

1.4.1. The Contractor shall provide Senior Companion Services In the following
geographic areas: Belknap, Merrimack, Gfafton, Hillsborough, Rockingham,
Stratford and Sullivan Counties.

1.5. The Contractor shall use BEAS' E-Studio electronic Information system which Is
BEAS' primary vehible for uploading Important information conceming time-sensitive
announcements, policy r.eleeses, administrative rule adoptions, and otner crificaT
information. The Contractor shall:

1.5.1. . Identify all of the key personnel who need to have" E-StudIo accounts to
ensure that information from BEAS can be shared with the necessary agency
staff, at no cost to the Contractor.

1.5.2. Ensure that E-Studio account(s) are kept current and that BEAS is notified
when a staff member Is no longer working in the program so his/her account
can be terminated.

1.6. The Contractor shall ensure all staff and volunteers and prospective staff and
volunteers:

1.6.1. Pursuant to RSA 161-F:49, complete a BEAS State Registry check before the
staff member or Companion begins providing direct services to Clients.

1.6.2. Undergo a New Hampshire Criminal Records Backgrourid check.

Community Action Program
Bedmap-Merrlmack Counties. Inc. ExtiitHtA , Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Senior Companion Program
SS-2017-BEAS-01-SENIO Exhibit A

2. Scope of Services

The Contractor shall provide Senior Companion Services as follows:

2.1. Maintain designation by the Corporation for National and Community .Sen/ice
,  (Corporation) established under the National and Community Service Trust Act of
1993 to administer the Senior Companion Services Program (Program).

2.2. Link low-income seniors, referred to as Companions, to Clients who are socially
isolated due to physical or emotional frailties, as follows:

2.2.1. Provide services in a manner that improves the quality of life for both
Companions and Clients;

2.2.2. Design the Companion's visits so as to encourage independence of the Client
' by providing assistance with daily living tasks, respite, and socialization;

2.2.3. Assign each Companion a minimum of two (2) Clients:

2.2.4. Require each Companion to provide a minimum of fifteen (15) hours of service
per week, as assigned by the Contractor:

2.2.5. Provide each Companion with a stipend as established by CFR Title 45,
Subtitle B, Chapter XXV, Part 2551, Subparts A-L;

2.2.6. Ensure that Companions participate' in educational programs as well as
supervisory meetings with program supervisors, as needed;

2.2.7. Ensure that Clients not incur any fees for services provided through the
.  Program;

2.2.8. Comply with specific program requirernents and complete specific program
measures and reporting requirements as required by CFR Title 45, Subtitle 8,
Chapter XXV, Part 2551, Subparts A-L;

2.2.9. Maintairi the designated number of volunteer station agencies as specified
under CFR Title 45, Subtitle 8, Chapter XXV, Part 2551, Subparts A-L; and

2.2.10. Provide direct supervision to Companions and assign the placement of
Companions and ongoing services to Clients.

3. Service Compliance Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements as defined in CFR Title 45,
Subtitle 8, Chapter XXV, Part 2551, Subparts A-L, governing the management and
operation of the Senior Companion Program".

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall comply with the following requirements and reporting
requirements:

4.1.1. Completion of specific program measures and reporting, requirements as
required by CFR Title 45, Subtitle 8, Chapter XXV, Part 2551, Subparts A-L.

4.t.2. Maintain the designated'number of volunteer station agencies specified under
CFR Title 45. Subtitle 8, Chapter XXV, Part 2551. Subparts A-L.

Conxnunity Action Program
Belknap-Menlmack Counties. Inc. , ExNbK A Contractor Initials
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New Ham|:»hlre Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Companion Program
SS-2017-BEAS-01-SENIO Exhibit A

4.1.3. Report the number of visits, individuals being visited, and the number of
Companions participating in the Program to the Department.

4.1.4. Conduct Annual Surveys of Clients, Companions and Station Supervisors to
indicate levels of satisfaction with the Program.

5. Reporting Requirements/Deliverables

5.1. Privacy and Security of Client Information

The Department Is the designated owner of ail data and shall approve all access to that
data. The Contractor shall not have ownership of State data at any time. The Contractor
shall be in compliance with privacy policies established by governmental agencies or. by
state or federal law,- Privacy policy statements may be developed and amerided from time to
time by the State and will appropriately displayed on the State portal. The Contractor
shall provide sufficient security to protect the State and Department data in network, transit,
storage and cache. In the event of breach, the Contractor shall notify the Department within
one day from the date of breach.

5.2. Notice of Failure to Meet Service Obligations

5.2.1. In the event that the Contractor, for any reason, is unable to meet any service
obligations prior to the completion date, the Contractor shall give at least a
ninety (90) day prior written notice addressed to the Bureau Director; Bureau
of Elderly and Adult Services, of such inability to meet service obligations.

5.2.2. Examples of failure to meet service obligations may include, but are not limited
to;

5.2.2.1. . Reducing hours of operation

5.2.2.2. Changing a geographic service area

5.2.2.3. Closing or opening a site

5.2.3. The written notification shall include the following:

^  5t2.3.1.——The-reasons-for-the-inability to deliver-^rvlcesi :

5.2.3.2. How service recipients and the community vvill be iiripactfid if ths^
Contractor is unable to provide services;

5.2.3.3. How service recipients and the community will be notified; and ~

5.2.3.4. The Contractor's plan to transition Companions and/or Clients Into other
services or refer the Companions and/or Clients to other agencies.

5.2.4. The Contractor shall maintain a plan.that addresses the present and future
heeds of Companion and/or Clients receiving services in the event that:

5.2.4.1. Service(s) are terminated or planned to be terminated prior to the
termination date of the contract;

5.2.4.2. The contract is terminated or Is planned to be terminated prior to the
termination date of the contract by the Contractor or the Department;

5.2.4.3. The Contractor terminates a service or services for any reason; .

5.2.4.4. The Contractor cannot carry out all or a portion of the services terms or
conditions outlined in the contract or sub-contracts.

Community Action Program a
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Senior Companion Program
SS-2017-BEAS-01-SENiO Exhibit A

5.3. Transition Process

5.3.1. The Contractor shall have a transition process for Companions and/or Clients
In the event that they may be transltloned between Department-contracted
providers and shall submit their written transition process to the Department
within thirty (30) days of approval of the Contract Agreement. The process
shall ensure:

5.3.1.1. Uninterrupted delivery of services for Companions and/or Clients;

5.3.1.2. A method of notifying Companions and/or Clients and/or the community
about the transition.

5.3.1.3. . A staff member shall be available to address questions about the
transition.

5.4. Contract Monitoring

5.4.1. The Contractor shall:

5.4.1.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of contract
compliance requirements as Identified In 0MB Circular A-133.

5.4.1.2. Ensure,the Department Is provided wrlth access that Includes, but Is not
limited to:

5.5.1.2.1.1 Data;

5.5.1.2.1.2 Financial records;

5.5.1.2.1.3 Scheduled access to Contractor work sites/tocations/work spaces
and associated facilities;

5.5.1.2.1.4 Unannounced access to Contractor work sites/locations/work
spaces and associated facilities;

5.5.1.2.1.5 Scheduled phone access to Contractor principals and staff; and

5.5.1.2.1.6 Timely unscheduled phone response by Contractor principals and
staff. ,

5.5. Quarterly Reports

The Contractor shall, on a quarterly basis, provide copies of program reports and statistics,
to the Department Including, but not limited to:

5.5.1. The number of visits made;

5.5.2. The number of Clients being visited;

5.5.3. The number of Companions participating in the program; and

5.5.4. The number of hours Companions spend with Clients.

5.6. Program Plans

The Contractor.shall submit the following to the Department within thirty (30) days of
approval of the Contract Agreement:

5.6.1. Qualifications for the Senior Companion Program as established by the
Corporation:

Community Action Program ^ --v
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Companion Program
SS-2017-BEAS-01^EN!0 Exhibit A

5.6.2. Program Measures and Reporting Requirements as established by the
Corporation; i

5.6.3. Staffing Plan:

5.6.4. Transition plan;

Quality Assurance Plan and describe your method/process for obtaining
quality satisfaction data from volunteers and other recipients of services;

Sample of the Annual Survey used to determine the program satisfaction;

Plan for Equal Access to Services;

5.6.8. Termination Plan/Assurance; and

5.6.9. Consumer Grievance Process.

5.6.5.

5.6.6.

5.6.7.

Community Action Program
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Companion Program

ss-20i7«EAS-oi-SENio Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. the Department shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price limitation on
Form P-37, Block 1.8, General Provisions, for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. The funding source for this Contract is 100% General Funds.

3. The Contractor shall comply with the necessary steps established by the Department for
making payments to vendors using Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT).

4. The Department may require certain payments returned to the State if:

4.1. The final reconciliation of the payments made by the Department under this contract
show that the payments exceed the actual units served;

4.2. Services are not being provided in accordance with the requirements and scope of
services outlined in Exhibit A; or

4.3. Should the Department choose to execute the right to terminate the contract as stated
in Exhibit G-1, Additional Special Provisions.

5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
services, and upon receipt of required reports, or Contractor Site Review Reports, the
Department may review costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon such review, the Department shall disallow any costs incurr^ that are determined to
not be allowable or are determined to be for services to Ineligible clients and shall, t)y written
notice specifying the disallowed costs, inform the contractor of any such disallowance. If the
Department disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay

.  such costs.

6., Payment for Services shall be made as follows:

6.1. The Contractor shall file a monthly, completed and signed Senior Companion Invoice
with the Department.

6.2. Expenses shall be reported for reimbursement by budget line Item in Exhibits 8-1
through B-3.

6.3. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each Invoice submitted pursuant to this Agreement.

Community Action Program
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Senior Companion Program

SS-2017-BEAS-01-SENIO Exhibit B

6.4. Invoices Identified In Section 4.1 shall be submitted to:

Department of Health and Human Services

Shawn Martin

Financial Management

Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services

129 Pleasant Street, Brown Building

Concord, NH 03301

Shawn. Martin@dhhs.nh!Qov

7. A final payrfient request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days after the end of the
Contract.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule, or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Contract. ^

9. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited
to transfer (he funds within the budget and within the price limitation, can be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

Community Action Program
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Exhibit B-1/BU0GET

October 1, 2016 • June 30. 2017

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name: Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counttea, Inc.

Budget Request for: Senior Companion Program

Budget Period: October 1, 2016 through Jurw 30. 2017

1. TctarSalarv/Waoes $  8.517.00 $ $  8,517.00

2. Emolovee Benefits i $  M.992.00 $ $  1.992.00

3. Consultants $ $ $

4. Equipment $ $ $

Rental $  - $  - $

Repair and Maintenance $ $ $  -

Purchase/OeDreciation $ $ $

5. Supplies: - $ $ $

Educational $ $ $
Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy $ $ $

Medical $ $ $

Office; $ $ $

6. Travel $ $ $

7. Occupancy $  - $  • $

8. Current Expenses $ $ $

Telephone $ $ $

Postaae $ $ $

Subscriptions $ $  ■ $

Audit and Leqal $ $ $

Insurance S $ $

Board Expenses $ $ $  -

9. Software $ $ $

10. Marketinq/Communications . . $ $ $

11. Staff Education and Traininq $ $ $

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ $ $

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $

Volunteer Travel S  11.991.00 $ S  11,991.00

$ $ $  -
- $ $ ~ $

TOTAL $  22.500.00 $ $  22,500.00 1

-TJ.

indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%
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Exhibit B-2/BUD6ET

July 1,2017-June 30, 2016

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name: Communltv Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Budget Request for: Senior Companion Program

Budget Period: July 1, 2017 through June 30. 2018

MM ti
1. Total Saiarv/Waaes $ 11.357.00 $ 11.357.00
2. Emoiovee Benefits $ 2.654.00 $ $ 2.654.00
3. Consuitants $ $ $
4. Equipment: ! $ $ $

Rental $ $ $
Repair and Maintenance $ $ $
Purchase/Depreciatiori $ $ $

5. SuDoiies: $ $ s
Educationai . $ $ $ ♦

Lab $ $ $
Pharmacv $ $ $
Medicai $ $ $ •

Office $ $ $ ,

6. Travei $ $ $ .  .

7. Occupancv $ $ $
6. Curreat-ExDenses . $ $ $

Tefephone $ $
Postage .$ '

Subscriptions $ $ $
AudK and Leaai $ $ s
insurance $ $ $
Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $
10. Marketino/Communications $ $ $
11. Staff Education and Training $ $ $
12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ $ $
13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ $
Volunteer Travei ? 15.969.00 $ $ 15.969.00

$ - $ $ .

$ - $ $ .

TOTAL $ 30,000.00 $ $ 30,000.00 1
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%
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Exhibit B.3/BUDGET

July 1, 2018 • September 30. 2018

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name: Community Action Proflram BetKnap'Merrlmack Countiea, Inc.

Budget Request for: Senior Companion Pronram

Budget Period: July 1,2016 through September 30, 2018

1. Total Salary/Wages $  2.839.00 $ $  2.839.00
2. Emolovee Benefits S  ' 664.00 $  - $  664.00
3. Consultants $ $ $  ■
4. Eauioment: $ $ $. -•• • ■

Rental $ $ $
Repair and Maintenance $ $  ■ - . $  -
Purchase/DeDreciation $ $ $  - .

5. Supplies; $ $ $ • '
Educational $ $ $
Lab $ $ $
Pharmacv . $ $ $  . - . , •
Medical $ $ $

Office. $ $ $
6. Travel $ $ $
7. Occupancy $ $ $
6. Current Expenses $ $ $  -

Telephone $ $ $  -
Postage $ $ $  -
Subscriptions $ $
Audit and Leoal $ $ $

insurance $ $ $
Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $
10. Mari^etina/Communications $ $ $
11. Staff Education and Traininq $ $ $  .

12. Subcontracts/Aareements $ $ $
13. Other fspecific details mandatorvi; $  - $ $  -
Volunteer Travel $  3.997.00 $ $  3.997,00

$ $ $

$ $ $
TOTAL $  7,500.00 $ $  7,500.001

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for seivices provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with F^eral and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and. procedures.

2. TIrne and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such tirries as are prescribed bv
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor.
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility deterrhination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall fumish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may'request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Coritractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determinatioh. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
me State in order to influence me performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contrad. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement If it is
deterrnined that payments, gratuities or.offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials,-officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

^  Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in anydher document, contract or understanding. It is expressly understood arid agreed by the parlies
nereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of me Contract T
and no payments shall be made for expenses iricurred by the Contractor for any senrices provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual Is'eligible for such services.

7. Condltlons of Purchase: No^ithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require me Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a.rate
which excels me amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to iheligibie individuals or other third party
mnders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in exMss of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
perrnitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufTiclentty and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to indude, without limitation, alt ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as

.  purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department. '

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all fonris required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department r^ulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor ishall submit an annual audit to the Department \Mthin 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is fecorrimended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management'and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non '
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits. . .
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department.The UnKed States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to ail reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall retum to the Department, ail payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to'the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
resped to purchased seh/ices hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department. .
11.1, Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such'other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder; Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory-to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the

. Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as. are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the perfonnance of the services of the Contract shall include the following

.  statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New-Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources'as were available or

.  required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Apprpval and Copyright Ownorehip: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production.
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original riiaterials'
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or re^rts. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations; In the operation of any facilities
for provkjingi services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services.at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall.be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the <^ntractor^wil| procure said license or permit, arid will ̂  all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the-Fire Marshal and

.. the local fire protection agency, and shall be iri conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEpP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), If it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more; If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

ExWbft C - Speaal Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not r^uired to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/alx)ut/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency fLEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of '1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all.contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000) '

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
.  and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Aclfor Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908:

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees In writing, In the predominant language of the workforce,
pf^ployee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall, insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c)..in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting,
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's perfonnance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

. conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure sutxontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the follov^ng:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective sut>contractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4, Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at Its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and.orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations goveming the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the St^e of NH to receive funds.i

PROPOSAL: If appliMble, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuate by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each sen/ice to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of.time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in ̂ hibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall rnean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compliation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch Ml-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS; The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials,

Page 5 of 5 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Proylsions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, Is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAl, NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, In whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of. funds affected by
ariy state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds becbrhe available. If ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The .State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Accouht(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language; -

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to term inate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transitton Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to m^t those rieeds.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State arxi shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested. - •

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
senrices under the Agreement are trahsltioned to having services delivered by another entity
Including coritracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected-individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 {Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
LJ.S.C. 701 et seg.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part H of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contradors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Sedion 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one .certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each-grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out i^low is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to: ■

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantw's '
woikplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition; "

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3.- Nteking it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant,.the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and * ,
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant actiyity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
Identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1; Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or •
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2, 1.3. 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the site{s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

y. ' . . .

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:
Community Action Program Bellcnap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

9/12/2016
Date Name:

Executive Director
alp Little

'  Exhibll D - Certificalion regarding Drug Free Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit E

~  CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352,-and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US:DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE -CONTRACTORS

• " S.'v 1

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance'to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D \
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX.
"Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Communrty Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
ainy person for influencing or-attempting to influence an officer or erhployee of any agency, a Member
of Congress,'an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee,of a Mem^r of Congress in ^
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuatlon. rehertfet'amendment, or . '
mcidification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any furids;'^'iier than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencir^g or attempting to,influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or ernployee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in.conriection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific rriention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instruction^ attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall'require that the language of this certification be included in the award"
docurnerit for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly!

This certification,^is;a rnaterial representation of fact upon which'reliance was placed when this transaction
was mada or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or enteririg into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each,such failure. ;

Contrador Name:
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

9/12/2016 >

^3te Name:\ Ral^h LitUefiek
''"■^'e: Executive Director

Exhibft E - Certificalion Regarding Lobbying .Contractor IniUals _
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMEWT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order, 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;!

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is pr^ovlding the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Hurrian Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addKlon to other remedies
avallal>le to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The,prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this propiDsal (contract) is submitted If at any timie the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has broome erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. •

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the rneanlngs set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered.
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in'this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibllity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Imtlals
And Other Responsibility Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions.authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction; in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

j

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of rts knowledge and belief, that it and Its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarity excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendercKl against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a jsublic transaction; violation of.Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or-local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participanfshall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

.14rTh^ros^tlve ldwertier particip^tTuiW^gTee's bY^rnlttir^thiVpro^^^
Include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Inellgibillty, arxl
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Community Action Program Bclknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

9/12/2016
fit

^Ralp LittleBeiDate Name:

Title: Executive Director

Exhibit F-Certtficalion Regarding OebarmenJ, Suspension Contractor Initiats
Ar>d Other Responsibility Matters o . .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

OF ̂  WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAIMIMfi TO
F^DpRAL NONDISCRIMIHATION. EQUAUJREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followina
certification: ^

Contractor will comply; and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondlscrimination requirements, which rnay include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C, Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute,from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain r^ipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion; national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;
- the Civil Rights Act.of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
a^istance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);
- the,Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section,794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance ffom discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity:, "

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683. 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis.of sex in federally assisted education programs;
-the AgeJDiscrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondlscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the lavirs for faith-based and" community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations; i

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government vwde suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a findinq of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights to
he applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services arid
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's

«rtSi?n Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1,12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

'' i^dlMted above^"^""""'"® Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions

Contractor Name:
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

9/12/2016 _

Title: Executive Director
Name: ) Ralph Littlcfiei:

Exhit^ltG

C«ttie«on crfCorrplfanM «tui fKMwrwtts fMrWning lo Ftam Neoatakriimlion. Equal trMtnwa ol ^
5/27/ia andWhaUebtowarproiacSoni .
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Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or.
contracted for byan entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either'
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by '
M^ica're or Medlcaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day.and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identifi^ In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certlfication:-

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act .of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Community Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc.

9/12/2016

.  . . Naf"e-^^alph Littlefield^
Title. Executive Director

"'®- jRaloh LittlefieidV-

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initiab
Environmental Tobacco Srnoke t
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
wm the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1)\ ~ Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45
Code of Federal Regulations.

b- "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45 Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Enflty" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations. ' .

Designated Record Sef" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

®- Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care Operations"
•in 45 CFR Section 164.501. . -

g. "J^tTECH A^ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
-  . Act; TltleXIII. Subtitle D, Part 1 &,2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of

200d«

h. "HIPAA" means the Heaith Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Secunty of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall, include a person who gualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

"Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the terrn "protected health
information in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the infomiatibn created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

Exhibit I Contractor tnitlals
Health insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 10(6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected

Health Information at 45 CFR Part 1W, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health information" means protected health information that is not
'secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
iristitute.

p. Other befinrtiohs - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 46 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a: Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protectekl Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate: ,
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification ,
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide senrices under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to'seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor initials /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identificatiOn;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
. disclosure was made; ,

o. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 the extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated. ' .

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the

Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, arid
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractors business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intend^ business associates, who will be receiving PHI

^^2014 Exhibit I Contractor Inltlats
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices ail
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide.access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

I

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528. ,

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Coyered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fonward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fonwarded requests. However, If foiwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes ttiat make the return Or destruction infeaslble, for so long as Business

3/201* • Exhibit I Contractor liitials
Health Insurance Portability Act
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c.

a.

c.

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Enhty shall notify Business Associate of any changes or Ilmrtation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals In accordance \A^lth 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure pf PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary,

(6) Miscellaneous

Cteflnitions and Regulatory References All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
fr(^ time to time. A reference In.the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

Amendment- Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
nec^sary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Peta Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
With respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. -

Ej^ibit I Contractor Initials ^
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Segregation. If any term or condition of tfils Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival., Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Community Action Program
'  . Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

The State Name of the Contractor

rj/^.
Signature of nzed Representative Signature of Authdri

Ralph Littlefield

tive

YACALi iff
Name of Authorized RepresentativeName of Authorized Ffepresentative

Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

Date

L 9/12/2016

Date

3/2014 Exhibit I

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPAREMCY
^  ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
date related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grarits of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information) the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
suljaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity '
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts ICFDA program numl)er for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of perfonmance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #) •
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.'

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identifted in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification;
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transoarencv Act.

Contractor Name;
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

9/12/2016 _ ̂
Name: > ̂ ph LittlAwd
Title: Executive Director

.  ExtiibilJ-Certification Regarding the Federai Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance \ 7Page 10(2 Date ^[nl{^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA .

As the Contractor Identrfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 07-399-7504

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed ftscal year. did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S; federal contracts, sut}contracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following: '

3. Does the put>lic have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your .
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 7to(d)) or section 6104 of the Interrial Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 at>ove is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3. above is NO, please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most higtily compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

N^e:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

cu/DHHsniorn

ExhibK J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountabiilty And Transparency Act (FFATA) CompGance

Page 2 of 2

Contractor Initlais

Date h>


